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General Information

Department of Health (the Department) is a Queensland Government department established under the Public Sector Act 2022 and its
registered trading name is Queensland Health.

Queensland Health is controlled by the State of Queensland which is the ultimate parent entity.
The head office and principal place of business of the Department is:

1William Street

Brisbane

Queensland 4000

For information in relation to the Department’s financial statements, email FIN_Corro@health.qld.gov.au or visit the Department of Health
websiteathttp:/ /www.health.qld.gov.au.
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Department of Health

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Original Actual vs
Budget budget
2023 2022 Ref* variance
$'000 $'000 $'000
REVENUE
Appropriation revenue 2 14,673,411 13,846,208 13,313,163 . 827,203
User charges 3 2,241,055 1,994,385 2,064,633 ii. 246,670
Labour recoveries 3 11,315,228 10,395,674 10,149,460 iii. 919,554
Grants and other contributions 3 6,612,795 6,228,946 6,741,221  iv. 383,849
Other revenue 3 93,986 35,747 112,934 V. 58,239
Interest revenue 6,484 1,254 2,918 5,230
TOTAL REVENUE 34,942,959 32,502,214 32,384,329 2,440,745
EXPENSES
Employee expenses 4 (13,362,569) (12,452,601) (12,042,140)  vi. (909,968)
Supplies and services 7 (2,128,399) (2,224,795) (2,162,479)  vii. 96,396
Health services 8 (19,050,340) (17,412,002) (17,490,715)  viii. (1,638,338)
Grants and subsidies 9 (107,165) (183,303) (145,749)  ix. 76,138
16, 17,
Depreciation and amortisation 18 (135,538) (165,784) (135,608)  «x. 30,246
Net impairment losses on financial and
contract assets (11,071) (1,630) (39,079)  xi. (9,441)
Share of loss from associates 22 (709) - (2,939) (709)
Other expenses 10 (147,608) (50,099) (363,457)  xii. (97,509)
TOTAL EXPENSES (34,943,399) (32,490,214) (32,382,166) (2,453,185)
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR (440) 12,000 2,163 (12,440)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Increase/(decrease) in asset revaluation
surplus 21 66,270 - 58,704 66,270
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE
YEAR 66,270 - 58,704 66,270

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE
YEAR 65,830 12,000 60,867 53,830

* This relates to Actual vs budget comparison commentary section (page 6).

The accompanying notes form part of these statements. 2
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Department of Health

Statement of financial position
As at 30 June 2023

Original
Budget Actual vs budget
2023 Ref* variance
$'000 $'000
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 12 701,852 144,852 234,394 Xxiii. 557,000
Loans and receivables 14 2,837,783 1,643,514 3,176,653  Xiv. 1,194,269
Inventories 15 178,278 243,153 209,152 xv. (64,875)
Prepayments 77,213 62,536 66,332  Xxvi. 14,677
Other assets 13 - 13 13
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 3,795,139 2,094,055 3,686,544 1,701,084

Non-current Assets

Loans and receivables 14 91,403 85,760 93,021 5,643
Property, plant and equipment 16 1,859,224 2,082,667 1,225,703  xvii. (223,443)
Right-of-use assets 17 13,104 19,069 16,418 (5,965)
Intangibles 18 298,028 377,435 302,518  xviii. (79,407)
Interests in associates 22 69,425 73,072 70,133 (3,647)
Other assets 33,427 6,675 29,026  Xix. 26,752
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 2,364,611 2,644,678 1,736,819 (280,067)
TOTAL ASSETS 6,159,750 4,738,733 5,423,363 1,421,017
LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Payables 19 2,064,792 512,064 2,154,531  Xx. 1,552,728
Accrued employee benefits 20 1,559,515 1,320,666 1,012,619  xxi. 238,849
Lease liabilities 17 1,731 2,980 2,532 (1,249)
Other liabilities 61 56,296 499  Xxxil. (56,235)
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,626,099 1,892,006 3,170,181 1,734,093

Non-current Liabilities

Lease liabilities 17 53,148 77,655 66,276  xxiii. (24,507)
Other liabilities - - 59 =
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 53,148 77,655 66,335 (24,507)
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,679,247 1,969,661 3,236,516 1,709,586
NET ASSETS 2,480,503 2,769,072 2,186,847 (288,569)
EQUITY

Contributed equity 779,254 551,431

Asset revaluation surplus 21 368,198 302,002

Retained surpluses 1,333,051 1,333,414

TOTAL EQUITY 2,480,503 2,769,072 2,186,847  XXiv. (288,569)

* This relates to Actual vs budget comparison commentary section (page 6).

The accompanying notes form part of these statements. 3
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Department of Health

Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Contributed  Asset revaluation Retained Total

equity surplus surpluses equity

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

BALANCE AT 1JULY 2022 551,431 302,002 1,333,414 2,186,847
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year - - (440) (440)
Increase/(decrease) in asset revaluation surplus = 66,270 - 66,270
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR - 66,270 (440) 65,830

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:

Equity injections 992,233 - - 992,233
Equity withdrawals (932,872) - - (932,872)
HHS equity transfers* 125,126 - = 125,126
Reclassification between equity classes - (74) 74 -
Net assets transferred in from Department of Energy and
Public Works 188 - - 188
Net assets transferred from/(to) HHSs 43148 - - 43148
Other equity adjustments = = 3 3
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2023 779,254 368,198 1,333,051 2,480,503
Contributed  Asset revaluation Retained Total
equity surplus surpluses equity
$'000 $’000 $’000 $’000
BALANCE AT 1JULY 2021 211,918 243,383 1,335,890 1,791,191
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year - - 2,163 2,163
Increase/(decrease) in asset revaluation surplus = 58,704 - 58,704
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR - 58,704 2,163 60,867

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:

Equity injections 814,527 - - 814,527
Equity withdrawals (830,081) - - (830,081)
HHS equity transfers* 341,530 = = 341,530
Reclassification between equity classes - (85) 85 -
Net assets transferred from Queensland Fire and

Emergency Services** 50,149 - - 50,149
Net assets transferred from/(to) HHSs (36,612) - - (36,612)
Other equity adjustments = = (4,724) (4,724)
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2022 551,431 302,002 1,333,414 2,186,847

Significant accounting policies

Non-exchange transfers of assets and liabilities between wholly owned Queensland State Public Sector entities as a result of
Machinery-of-Government (MoG) changes are adjusted to contributed equity in accordance with Interpretation 1038 Contributions by
Owners Made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities. Appropriations for equity adjustments are similarly designated.

* Hospital and Health Services (HHSs) are independent statutory bodies and equity injections should not be taken to indicate control or
ownership by the Department. HHS equity transfers represent equity withdrawals for reimbursements of a capital nature, offset by injections
mainly relating to depreciation funding.

** During 2021-22 Queensland Fire and Emergency Services (QFES) transferred property, plant and equipment of 543.4M (refer to Note 16),
and cash of $6.7M to the Department, that QFES had received as part of a larger Machinery of Government transfer, upon disestablishment
of the Public Safety Business Agency.

The accompanying notes form part of these statements. 4
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Department of Health

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Original Actual vs
Budget budget

2023 variance
$'000 $'000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Inflows

Appropriation revenue receipts 14,899,045 13,831,521 12,508,755  xxv. 1,067,524
User charges 2,017,143 1,944,738 1,808,551 72,405
Labour recoveries 11,014,293 10,395,674 10,128,183  xxvi. 618,619
Grants and other contributions 6,650,170 6,132,166 6,354,292 Xxvii. 518,004
GST collected from customers 14,519 12,728 13,881 1,791
GST input tax credits 382,796 290,977 347,144 91,819
Other revenue 42,514 37,179 114,573 5,335
Payroll loans and advances 5,454 - 1,518 5,454
Outflows

Employee expenses (12,852,331) (12,384,835) (11,836,105) (467,496)
Supplies and services (2,118,672) (2,672,312) (1,761,269) xxviii. 553,640
Health services (17,734,279) (16,865,858) (16,426,417)  xxix. (868,421)
Grants and subsidies (107,165) (182,152) (145,749)  xxx. 74,987
GST paid to suppliers (379,126) (290,977) (362,366) (88,149)
GST remitted (14,413) (12,728) (13,979) (1,685)
Other expenses (79,748) (38,646) (89,317) xxxi. (41,102)
Cash recoupment from HHSs/(payments made

on behalf of HHSs) (111,747) - (63,587) xxxii. (111,747)
NET CASH FROM/(USED BY) OPERATING

ACTIVITIES 11 1,628,453 197,475 578,108 1,430,978
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Inflows

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and

equipment 354 1,650 930 (1,296)
Loans and advances - 5,615 - (5,615)
Outflows

Payments for property, plant and equipment (634,439) (1,417,627) (264,383) xxxiii. 783,188
Payments for intangibles (30,343) (86,283) (16,907) 55,940
NET CASH FROM/(USED BY) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (664,428) (1,496,645) (280,360) 832,217
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Inflows

Equity injections** 1,356,205 2,095,382 955,752 XXXiv. (739,177)
Outflows

Equity withdrawals** (1,850,718) (896,885) (1,429,976) XxxV. (953,833)
Lease principal payments (2,054) (3,248) (2,855) 1,194
NET CASH FROM/(USED BY) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (496,567) 1,195,249 (477,079) (1,691,816)
NET INCREASE /(DECREASE) IN CASH HELD 467,458 (103,921) (179,331) 571,379
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of

the financial year 234,394 248,773 413,725 (14,379)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF
THE FINANCIAL YEAR 12 701,852 144,852 234,394 557,000

* This relates to Actual vs budget comparison commentary section (page 6)

** Details of the Department’s change in liability for equity withdrawals payable/receivable is outlined in Note 2. Equity Injections includes
S56.7M from the transfer of cash from Queensland Fire and Emergency Services in 2021-22.

The accompanying notes form part of these statements. 5
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Department of Health

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements

For the year ended 30 June 2023

Actual vs budget comparison
Statement of profit or loss

i. The $827.2M variance in Appropriation revenue is
predominantly due to additional state funding for
enterprise bargaining outcomes ($456.0M), changes to
superannuation arrangements ($209.1M) and additional
funding for retrieval services ($32.4M). These were not
known at the time of the budget.

ii. The $246.7M variance in User charges is mainly due to Sale
of Goods and Services and Hospital fees being higher than
budget. The Sale of Goods and Services variance ($165.3M) is
largely driven by growth in telecommunications and
computer recoveries ($66.7M), and an increase in
outsourced delivery recoveries ($21.2M). In addition, the
variance reflects the allocation of cross border charges from
HHSs ($90.6M) not known at the time of budget. The Hospital
fees variance ($80.6M) was predominantly due to the
recovery of an additional $71.5M in cross border fees from
another jurisdiction, relating to prior years.

jii. The $919.6M variance in Labour recoveries is due to a
combination of salary and wage increases and growth in
HHS FTEs over the course of the year. HHS FTEs increased by
2,300, predominantly due to changes in activities at these
HHSs.

iv. The $383.8M variance in Grants and contributions is
mostly owing to the recognition of an unbudgeted $210.5M
COVID-19 funding from the Commonwealth National
Partnership Agreement. The remainder of the variance is
attributable to specific purpose funding from the
Commonwealth which was not known at the time of the
budget.

v. The $58.2M variance in Other revenue is largely due to an
unforeseen gain being recognised as a result of a liability for
RATs being extinguished ($31.2M), and the recognition of a
receivable for prior year cross border expenditure
reimbursement ($24.1M).

vi. The $910.0M variance in Employee expenses is due to a
combination of salary and wage increases and growth in
HHS FTEs over the course of the year, fully offset by Labour
recoveries. HHS FTEs increased by 2,300, predominantly due
to changes in activities at these HHSs which were not known
at the time of the budget.

vii. The $96.4M variance in Supplies and services is mainly
due to funding being re-directed throughout the year from
Supplies and services to purchase health services from the
HHSs.

viii. The $1.6B variance in Health services is mainly due to
additional funding ($1.5B) provided to HHSs and Mater
Hospital through in-year Service Agreement amendments to
deliver additional activity and services, in order to meet
increased Hospital and Health Services demand. The
remainder of the variance is due to additional funding for
Mental health services ($97.0M) which was not known at the
time of the budget.

ix. The $76.1M variance in Grants and subsidies expense is
mainly due to the winding up of provision of public health
(COVD-19 related) programs in private hospitals during the

year, offset by Other mental, home, community and rural
services funding ($49.6M) which was not known at the time
of budget.

X. The $30.2M variance in Depreciation and amortisation is
mainly owing to budgeted Plant and equipment
depreciation ($19.3M), Buildings depreciation ($4.1M) and
Software amortisation ($6.7M) for which capital projects
were not ultimately commissioned in the financial year.

xi. The $9.4M variance in Impairment losses is largely due to
higher than budgeted provision for doubtful debts ($3.9M)
relating to hotel quarantine fees, and salary overpayments
($1.7Mm).

xii. The $97.5M variance in Other expenses largely relates to
the recognition of donated Rapid Antigen Test (RATS)
inventory to HHSs ($63.4M) and Pandemic Leave payments
($40.9M) associated with the COVID-19 pandemic, paid to the
Australian Government. These were not known at the time
of the budget.

Statement of Financial Position

xiii. The $557.0M variance in Cash and cash equivalents is
predominantly due to additional state funding for
enterprise bargaining outcomes ($456.0M), and changes to
superannuation arrangements ($209.1M), which were not
known at the time of the budget.

xiv. The $1.2B variance in Loans and receivables (current) is
largely owing to Appropriation receivables ($595.8M), Grants
receivables ($199.0M), and higher than expected Annual
leave claims receivables ($135.5M), which could not be
accounted for at the time of budget.

xv. The $64.9M variance in Inventories is largely owing to the
donation of Rapid Antigen Tests (RATS) to HHSs and other
parties, along with a write-off during the year of obsolete
Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) inventory.

xvi. The $14.7M variance in Prepayments relates to higher
than expected prepaid expenditure occurring in vyear,
compared to future period estimates that were made at the
time of the budget.

xvii. The $223.4M variance in Property, plant and equipment
is due to delays in expected timing of budgeted capital
expenditure occurring ($781.8M) resulting in lower than
expected actuals, offset by net transfers in of capital works
in progress from HHSs ($588.5M) not known at the time of
the budget.

xviii. The $79.4M variance in Intangibles is mainly due to
delays in expected timing of budgeted capital expenditure
occurring resulting in lower than expected actuals, and
project related expenditure budgeted as capital, but when
incurred is determined to not meet capital recognition
criteria and expensed as operating. These movements are
not known at the time of budget preparation.

Xix. The $26.8M variance in Other assets non-current is due
to the continued recognition of a lease advance payment to
the Brisbane Airport Corporation in 2021-22.
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Department of Health

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements

For the year ended 30 June 2023

xx. The $1.6B variance in Payables is mainly due to
appropriations payable of $1.2B, HHS payables of $338.1M
and PAYG withholdings of $183.2M, which were not known at
the time of the budget.

xxi. The $238.8M variance in Accrued employee benefits is
mainly due to the recognition of increased costs related to
Superannuation changes, Cost-of-living-allowance (COLA),
and Enterprise Bargaining Agreements (EB) certified during
the financial year.

xxii. The $56.2M variance in Other liabilities (current) relates
to future period estimates of Commonwealth funding
contract liabilities associated with COVID-19 funding. The
estimates were based on information available at the time
of the budget. The budgeted transactions did not eventuate
owing to the discontinuation of COVID-19 funding by the
Australian Government.

xxiii. The $24.5M variance in Lease liabilities (non-current) is
largely owing to consideration for future increases in lease
arrangements at the time of budget that did not eventuate.

xxiv. The $288.6M variance in Total Equity is mainly due to
changes in the timing and nature of funding related to
capital programs, and exchanges in funds between HHS and
DoH for depreciation and operating expenses.

Statement of Cash Flows

xxv. The $1.1B variance in Appropriation revenue receipts is
predominantly due to additional state funding for
enterprise bargaining outcomes ($456.0M), changes to
superannuation arrangements ($209.1M) and additional
funding for retrieval services ($32.4M).

xxvi. The $618.6M variance in Labour recoveries is due to a
combination of salary and wage increases and growth in
HHS FTEs over the course of the year. HHS FTEs increased by
2,300, predominantly due to changes in activities at these
HHSs.

xxvii. The $518.0M variance in Grants and other
contributions is mostly owing to the receipt of additional
($450.2M) COVID-19 funding from the Commonwealth, not
known at the time of the budget. (Refer to the Grants and
contributions revenue comment iv. above).

xxviii. The $553.6M variance in Supplies and services is
mainly due to funding being re-directed throughout the year
from Supplies and services to purchase health services from
the HHSs.

xxix. The $868.4M variance in Health services is mainly due
to additional funding provided to HHSs and Mater Hospital
through in-year Service Agreement amendments to deliver
additional activity and services, in order to meet increased
demand.

xxx. The $75.0M variance in grants and subsidies expense is
mainly due to a winding up of provision of public health
(COVID-19 related) programs in private hospitals. This was
not known at the time of the budget.

xxxi. The $41.1M variance in Other expenses is mainly due to
Pandemic Leave payments ($40.9M) associated with the
COVID-19 pandemic, paid to the Australian Government.
These were not known at the time of the budget.

The accompanying notes form part of these statements.

Xxxii. The $111.7M variance in Cash recoupment from HHSs is
due to this amount not being known at the time of the
budget.

xxxiii. The $783.2M variance for Property, plant and
equipment is mainly due to changes in the timing and the
nature of funding provided for the Department's Capital
Program (refer to PPE comment xvii. above).

Xxxiv. The $739.2M variance in Equity injections is mainly due
to the difference in treatment of depreciation funding
between budget and actuals.

xxxv. The $953.8M variance in Equity withdrawals is mainly
due to HHS non appropriated equity transfers relating to
capital reimbursement programs of $874.8M.
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Department of Health

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements

For the year ended 30 June 2023

Major services
Significant accounting policies

The revenue and expenses of the Department's corporate
services are allocated based on the services they primarily
support, These are included in the Statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income by major
departmental services.

There were seven major health services delivered by the
Department of Health. These reflect the Department’s
planning priorities as articulated in the Department of
Health Strategic Plan 2027-2025 and support investment
decision making based on the health continuum. The
identity and purpose of each service is summarised as
follows:

Inpatient Care

Aims to provide safe, timely, appropriately accessible,
patient centred care that maximises the health outcomes
of patients. A broad range of services are available to
patients under a formal admission process and can refer to
care provided in hospital and/or in a patient’s home.

Emergency Care

Aims to minimise early mortality and complications
through diagnosing and treating acute and urgent illness
and injury. This major service is provided by a wide range
of facilities and providers from remote nurse run clinics,
general practices, retrieval services, through to Emergency
Departments.

Mental Health and Alcoho! and Other Drug Services

Aims to promote the mental health of the community,
prevent the development of mental health problems, and
address the harms arising from the use of alcohol and other
drugs. This service aims to provide timely access to safe,
high quality assessment and treatment services.

Outpatient Care

Aims to deliver coordinated care, clinical follow-up, and
appropriate discharge planning throughout the patient
journey.  Outpatient services are examinations,
consultations, treatments or other services provided to
patients who are not currently admitted to hospital that
require specialist care. Outpatient services also provide
associated allied health services (such as physiotherapy)
and diagnostic testing.

Sub and Non-Acute Care

Aims to optimise patients functioning and quality of life
and comprises rehabilitation care, palliative care, geriatric
evaluation and management care, psychogeriatric care and
maintenance care.

Prevention, Primary and Community Care

Aims to prevent illness and injury, addresses health
problems or risk factors, and protects the good health and
wellbeing of Queenslanders. Services include health
promotion, illness prevention, disease control,
immunisation,  screening, oral health services,
environmental health, research, advocacy and community
development, allied health, assessment and care planning.

Ambulance Services

Aims to provide timely and quality ambulance services
which meet the needs of the Queensland community and
includes emergency and non-urgent patient care, routine
pre-hospital patient care and casualty room services,
patient transport, community education and awareness
programs and community first aid training. The Queensland
Ambulance Service continues to operate under its own
corporate identity.

Note 1. Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements to the extent they are not disclosed in any of
the specific notes that follow this note. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Statement of compliance

These general-purpose financial statements have been
prepared in compliance with section 38 of the Financial and
Performance Management Standard 2079 and in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and
Interpretations applicable to the Department's not-for-
profit entity status. The financial statements comply with
Queensland Treasury's reporting requirements and
authoritative pronouncements for reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2022.

Services provided free of charge or for a nominal value

The Department provides free corporate services to
Hospital and Health Services (HHS). These services include
payroll, accounts payable and banking.

The 2022-23 fair value of these services is estimated to be
$132.6M ($133.7M for 2021-22) for payroll and $8.8M ($9.9M
for 2021-22) for banking and accounts payable.

Goods and Services Tax and other similar taxes

Department of Health is a state body, as defined under the
Income Tax Assessment Act 7936, and is exempt from
Commonwealth taxation, with the exception of Fringe
Benefits Tax and Goods and Services Tax. The Department
satisfies section 149-25(e) of A New Tax System (Goods and
Services) Act 1999and together with all Hospital and Health
Services, forms a “group” for GST purposes.

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except land and buildings which are
measured at fair value and certain receivables measured at
fair value.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the Statement of financial position when the Department
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument.

Financial instruments are classified and measured as
follows:

» Receivables - held at amortised cost; and

» Payables - held at amortised cost.

The Department currently does not enter into transactions
for speculative purposes, or for hedging,

10
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Department of Health

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements

For the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Critical accounting judgement and key sources of
estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements necessarily
requires the determination and use of certain critical
accounting estimates, assumptions, and management
judgements. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered as relevant and are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Estimates and assumptions that have a potential
significant effect are outlined in the following
financial statement notes:

e Impairment of financial assets - Note 14 Loans and
receivables;

¢ Allowance for loss of service potential — Note 15
Inventories;

e Estimation of fair values for land and buildings -
Note 16 Property, plant and equipment;

e Estimated useful life of intangible assets - Note 18
Intangible assets; and

e Estimation uncertainties and judgements related to
lease accounting — Note 17 Leases.

Machinery-of-Government changes
Details of Transfer: The Office for Women function
transferred from the Department of Justice and

Attorney-General to the Department of Health.

Basis of transfer: Public Service Departmental
Arrangements Notice (No.2) 2023 dated 18 May 2023.

Date of transfer: Effective from 1 June 2023.

The assets and liabilities transferred as a result of this
change were as follows:

$'000

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 253

Loans and receivables 29
282

Liabilities

Payables 261

Accrued employee benefits 21
282

Net Assets -

Budgeted appropriation revenue of $0.1 million (controlled)
was reallocated from the Department of Justice and
Attorney-General to the Department of Health as part of the
Machinery-of-Government changes.

New and amended standards adopted

The Department has not applied any new standards or
amendments for the first time in the annual reporting
period commencing 1 July 2022.

A number of other amendments and interpretations apply
for the first time for the year ended 30 June 2023, but do not
have an impact on the Department’s financial statements.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The Department is not permitted to early adopt accounting
standards unless approved by Queensland Treasury.

The Department has not early adopted any new accounting
standards or interpretations that have been published, and
that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2023 reporting
period.

Other presentation matters

Comparative information has been restated where
necessary to be consistent with disclosures in the current
reporting period. Material changes to comparative
information have been separately identified in the relevant
note where required. Amounts have been rounded to the
nearest thousand Australian dollars.

11



Department of Health

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 2. Appropriation revenue

2023 2022

$'000 $'000
RECONCILIATION OF PAYMENTS FROM CONSOLIDATED FUND TO APPROPRIATED REVENUE RECOGNISED IN OPERATING RESULT
Original budgeted appropriation 13,831,521 12,714,683
Unforeseen expenditure 1,067,524 -
Lapsed appropriation revenue for other services - (205,928)
TOTAL APPROPRIATION RECEIPTS (CASH) 14,899,045 12,508,755
Less: Opening balance appropriation revenue receivable (829,063) (214,197)
Add: Closing balance appropriation revenue receivable 541,908 829,063
Add: Opening balance appropriation revenue payable 918,879 1,108,421
Less: Closing balance appropriation revenue payable (857,358) (918,879)
APPROPRIATION REVENUE FOR SERVICES RECOGNISED IN THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 14,673,411 13,313,163

2023 2022

$'000 $'000
RECONCILIATION OF PAYMENTS FROM CONSOLIDATED FUND TO EQUITY ADJUSTMENT
Budgeted equity adjustment appropriation 350,776 272,460
Unforeseen expenditure* 21,652 -
Lapsed appropriation - (144,652)
EQUITY ADJUSTMENT RECEIPTS (CASH) 372,428 127,808
Less: Opening balance appropriated equity injection receivable (384,380) (305,548)
Add: Closing balance appropriated equity injection receivable 53,933 384,380
Add: Opening balance appropriated equity withdrawal payable 339,549 117,355
Less: Closing balance appropriated equity withdrawal payable (322,169) (339,549)
EQUITY ADJUSTMENT RECOGNISED IN CONTRIBUTED EQUITY** 59,361 (15,554)

*Unforeseen expenditure was primarily related to additional State funding provided for managing the ongoing COVID-19 response, negotiated
outcomes of enterprise bargaining agreements reached in 2022-23, and for changes to whole-of government superannuation arrangements.
**This is net of equity injections and equity withdrawals.

Significant accounting policies

Appropriations provided under the Appropriation Act 2022 and Appropriation (COVID-19) Act 2020 (repealed 29 August 2022)
are recognised as revenue when received, or as a receivable when approved by Queensland Treasury.

Funding received can exceed the associated expenditure over the financial year due to operating efficiencies, changes in
activity levels or timing differences. Any unspent appropriation may be returned to the consolidated fund and may become
available for re-appropriation in subsequent years.

Unspent appropriation for 2022-23 amounted to $514.8M ($188.1M in 2021-22). Revenue appropriations are received on the
basis of budget estimates and various activity-specific agreements.
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Department of Health

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 3. Revenue

Grants and
User Labour other Other
charges recoveries  contributions  revenue
$'000 $'000 $'000 $’000
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
Sale of goods and services 1,814,947 - - - 1,814,947
Hospital fees 352,769 - - - 352,769
Labour recoveries from non-prescribed HHSs - 11,315,228 - - 11,315,228
Australian Government - National Health Funding Pool
- Activity based funding* - - 5,543,574 - 5,543,574
Quarantine Fees - - - 760 760
Licence charges - - - 5,413 5,413
2,167,716 11,315,228 5,543,574 6,173 19,032,691
NON-CONTRACT REVENUE
Hospital fees 66,951 - - - 66,951
Rental income 6,388 - - - 6,388
Australian Government - National Health Funding Pool
- Other funding** = = 896,628 = 896,628
Other grants and donations - - 172,593 - 172,593
Recoveries and reimbursements - - - 69,671 69,671
Grants returned - - - 9,719 9,719
Sale proceeds of non-capitalised assets - - - 2,059 2,059
Other - - - 6,364 6,364
73,339 - 1,069,221 87,813 1,230,373
TOTAL 2,241,055 11,315,228 6,612,795 93,986 20,263,064

* Contract revenue includes $61.7M of COVID-19 related funding.
** Non-contract revenue includes $149.6M of COVID-19 related funding.

Grants and
User Labour other Other
charges recoveries  contributions  revenue
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
Sale of goods and services 1,716,285 - - - 1,716,285
Hospital fees 255,571 - - - 255,571
Labour recoveries from non-prescribed HHSs = 10,149,460 = = 10,149,460
Australian Government - National Health Funding Pool
- Activity based funding* - - 5,184,913 - 5,184,913
Quarantine Fees - - - 69,284 69,284
Licence charges - - - 5,403 5,403
1,971,856 10,149,460 5,184,913 74,687 17,380,916
NON-CONTRACT REVENUE
Hospital fees 86,031 - - - 86,031
Rental income 6,746 - - - 6,746
Australian Government - National Health Funding Pool
- Other funding** = = 1,320,285 = 1,320,285
Other grants and donations - - 236,023 - 236,023
Recoveries and reimbursements - - - 12,132 12,132
Grants returned - - - 14,926 14,926
Sale proceeds of non-capitalised assets - - - 919 919
Net gains from disposal/transfer of non-current assets - - - 580 580
Other - - - 9,690 9,690
92,777 - 1,556,308 38,247 1,687,332
TOTAL 2,064,633 10,149,460 6,741,221 112,934 19,068,248

* Contract revenue includes $296.8M of COVID-19 related funding.
** Non-contract revenue includes $597.8M of COVID-19 related funding.
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Department of Health

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 3. Revenue (continued)
Significant accounting policies

Under AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, revenue is recognised when an entity transfers control of
goods/services to a customer, at the amount to which the entity expects to be entitled. Depending on specific contractual
terms, some revenue may be recognised at a point in time (e.g., when control is transferred to the customer), and other
revenue may be recognised over the term of the contract (e.g., when the entity satisfies its performance obligations
progressively over a period of time).

In assessing the correct accounting treatment of grants revenue, consideration is given as to whether the contract is
enforceable and if the performance obligations are sufficiently specific. Where there is no enforceable contract, grants
revenue is not recognised under AASB 15 but is recognised under AASB 1058 /ncome for Not-for-Profit Entities.

AASB 1058 guidance is that it is necessary to first determine whether each transaction, or part of that transaction, falls in the
scope of AASB 15. Only if AASB 15 does not apply, should AASB 1058 be considered. Under AASB 1058 revenue is recognised
immediately on receipt of the funds except for special purpose capital grants received to construct non-financial assets to be
controlled by the Department.

User charges and fees are recognised by the Department when delivery of the goods or services in full or in part has occurred.
The sale of goods and services includes drugs, medical supplies, linen, pathology and other services provided to HHSs.
Hospital fees mainly comprise interstate patient revenue, Department of Veterans' Affairs revenue and Motor Accident
Insurance Commission revenue.

The Department provides employees to non-prescribed HHSs (HHSs not prescribed as employers under the Hospital and
Health Boards Act 2077) to work for the HHSs under a service agreement. The employees for non-prescribed employer HHSs
remain the employees of the Department and in substance are contracted to the HHS. The Department recovers all employee
expenses and associated on-costs from HHSs each fortnight as part of each payroll cycle.

Grants, contributions and donations revenue arise from non-exchange transactions where the Department does not directly
give approximately equal value to the grantor. Where the grant agreement is enforceable and contains sufficiently specific
performance obligations, the transaction is accounted for under AASB 15. If these criteria are not met, the grant is accounted
for under AASB 1058, whereby revenue is recognised upon receipt of the grant funding, except for special purpose capital
grants received to construct non-financial assets to be controlled by the Department. Special purpose capital grants are
recognised as unearned revenue when received, and subsequently recognised progressively as revenue as the Department
satisfies its obligations under the grant through construction of the asset.

Note 4. Employee expenses Significant accounting policies

2023 pip¥A  Under the Queensland Government's Annual leave
$'000 SO and Long service leave central schemes, levies are
Wages and salaries 10,394,941 9,490,738 payable by the erartment to cover‘the cost of
. o employee leave (including leave loading and on-
Employer superannuation contributions 1,290,443 1,021,733 costs). These levies are expensed in the period in
Annual leave levy 1,310,699 1,180,827  which they are paid or payable. Amounts paid to
Long service leave levy 265,016 233,725  employees for annual leave and long service leave
.. are claimed from the schemes quarterly, in arrears.
Termination payments 15,848 10,121 . : .
. . Non-vesting employee benefits, such as sick leave,
Workers' compensation premium 13,827 7915 3re recognised as an expense when taken.
Other employee related expenses 71,795 97,081
13,362,569 12,042,140

Employer superannuation contributions are paid to the superannuation fund of the eligible employee’s choice. For the defined
benefit scheme, contributions are paid at rates determined by the Treasurer on the advice of the State Actuary (refer to Note
20). For accumulated contribution plans, the rate is determined based on the relevant Enterprise Bargaining agreement or the
employee’s contract of employment. Contributions are expensed in the period in which they are paid or payable and the
Department's obligation is limited to its contribution to the superannuation funds.

Under current Employer Arrangements, all HHSs are non-prescribed employers. This results in all non-executive employees
being employed directly by the Director-General in the Department of Health and contracted to the HHSs.

14



Department of Health

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 4. Employee expenses (continued)

The Department pays premiums to WorkCover Queensland in respect of its obligations for employee compensation.

2023 - Number of Employees 2022 - Number of Employees

13,957 13,459

83,681 81,381

= Non-prescribed Hospital and Health Services = Non-prescribed Hospital and Health Services

Department of Health Department of Health

The number of employees includes full-time employees and part-time employees measured on a full-time equivalent basis
as at 30 June 2023. Hospital and Health Service employees are those of the non-prescribed employer HHSs where the
employees remain employees of the Department and are effectively contracted to the HHS.

Note 5. Key management personnel disclosures

Key management personnel include those positions that had direct or indirect authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Department.

The Department’s responsible Minister is identified as part of the Department’s KMP. The Minister receives no remuneration
or other such payments from the Department. The majority of the Ministerial entitlements are paid by the Legislative
Assembly. As the Minister is reported as KMP of the Queensland Government, aggregate remuneration expenses for the
Minister are disclosed in the Queensland Government and Whole of Government Consolidated Financial Statements, which
are published as part of Queensland Treasury’s Report on State Finances.

Remuneration policy for the Department’s other key management personnel is set by the Queensland Public Service
Commission as provided for under the Public Sector Act 2022, the Hospital and Health Boards Act 2077 and the Ambulance
Service Act 7991. The remuneration and other terms of employment for the key management personnel are specified in
employment contracts. The contracts may provide for other benefits including a motor vehicle allowance. For 2022-2023, the
remuneration of key management personnel generally increased by 2.5% and none of the key management personnel has a
remuneration package that includes potential performance payments. The Remuneration packages for key management
personnel comprise the following:

Short-term employee benefits Other employee benefits

Long term employee benefits including long service

Base salary, allowances and leave entitlements
leave accrued.

expensed for the period during which the employee

occupied the specified position. Post-employment benefits including superannuation

Non-monetary benefits consisting of the provision of benefits.

car parking and fringe benefit taxes applicable to other Termination benefits. Employment contracts only
benefits. provide for notice periods or payment in lieu of
termination, regardless of the reason.

15




91

0L¢
(43"

LET
9€L

0L
S%7¢
S€

LTc

[4°)

[440]4

68¢C

L29

9LL
LT
4]

L6L

(174

€¢0¢

000.$

s1yauag 1e10]

¢coc  €coc ceo

000.$
s1jauaq

uolyeulwia]

6¢

0S

oL
6L

€S

¢ €coc

000:$

STIENEL]
1uswAhojdwa

-1s0d

[44V]4

— 1 N
[

1
- &N

000.$
s1jauaq
wJal Suo

syjauaq 9akojdws J13y10

€¢0¢

9 - A4
- - LLL

9 - €0¢
- S €l

[a2]
1

8L¢
LE

1
oM -
1

- S L0¢C

L - €6¢€

[4A\TAR XA T4
000.$
s1jauaq
Alelsuow-uopN

(4414
000.$
s1jauaq
Alelsuop

%S¢

L9S

eoL
L6L
Ly

8LL

8%

€¢0¢

S11JoUQ WIS1-10YS

"S3W0IN0 WaISAs-J0-910ym anslyde 01 sJapinosd 3d1AIBS 950U} JO dduewW.04Iad

ay3 SulSeuew pue siapinoid a31A19S woly ANAIDR 1ed1UND Jo Sulseydind apnjdul sanljigqisuodsay
‘(zeoe Arenuqa4 £z 01 GLOZ ISNSny LE) 91991S SBIOYDIN -JouLIod

‘(3ua.4nd 01 Zz0z Jaqwiaidas | wouy palutodde ‘zzoz Areniqaq 8z wody Sude) Jaue) eSSIaW JuaLin)
UOISIAIQ ddUeW.I0LIdd WISAS pue Suiseydind aiedyljesH ‘jesauan-io01a.ig Aindag

uawuedaqg

ay3 Jo salyAde diysiapea) |ed1ul)d Jeuolssajold pue yaueasal pue ‘uoileaouul pue Juswanosdwi
1ea1u11d ‘Ajenb asinuas pue Alajes juaiyed ayl o1 diysiapes) d1893ea3s Suipiroad 104 d)qisuodsay
“(2z0z ya4ew £z 01 Lzoz An[ L wouy Suinoe) ueymoN A9)1ays ey

*(1u44nd 01 ZZ0z 4aqwia1das g wouy pajulodde ‘Zz0Z YdJeW 82 WO4S SUIDR) UMOIg US)SH IQ JU8din)
pue)suaany 3dud))a3x3 jediun)) ‘jessuan-1012a.iq findaq

'suolje)al JelIsnpul

pue juswadeuew aSPAIMOUY| ‘SBIIAIBS 92IN0SAJ UBWINY PUE eIdURUL S udwledaq ayl Sulpes)
apnioul saiqisuodsal Jayun4 "waisAs yijeay dngnd pue|sussanp Japeo.q ay3 01 ‘S9IULRISWNIIID,
urenad ul ‘pue Juswpedaq syl UIYHM ylog S9IIAIDS |BS3] pUR JUBWSIUBYUS SSBUISN] ‘SYIoM

1euded ‘sadinias jeuonielado pue aresodiod JaAdp 01 diysiapes) 218a1euis Sulpiaoad 1oy d1qisuodsay
‘(zzoz Arenue( gz 01 Lz0z Joquiaidas £z wody Suide) (eyipes uen widauf

"(zzoz Aew LE 01 7zoz Aenue( 6z pue ‘Lzoz Jaqwa1das 9z 01 /10T YdJew 9) sdijjiyd eleqleq /ouriod
‘(z20z Joqwa1das 4 01 Zz0gz aun( L) 91991S SeIOUDIN ‘uiLId)U]

"(€20Z AeW Lz 01 20T 13qWa1das §) J1edUIS PIARQ FUdLIND)

‘(1uaund 01 £20Z AW 7z WoJ) SuldR) UsaID uelweq WU/

UoISIAIQ SIAIBS d1el0d.0) ‘Jessauan-i013a.1g Aindag

“AoMIBN 3921AIDS YljeaH pue jeldsoH sy jo JaSeuew diysuolie)al pue

10e1U09 Jo jutod Atewnid ay) Sulag ul 1eIausn-1012341Q 3yl spoddns "6L-dIAOD 01 dsuodsas SuloSuo
9y} speaT 's)eos 91e10dJ03 JO JUBWISASIYIE BY3} SUIINSUD PUB UOIIIBJIP SSauIsNg 1591e1s ayl SuINas
ul 1eJauan 1032241 a3y Suioddns ul Juawiredaq ays 1oy 9104 diysiapes) sy e Sulheld 104 a1qisuodsay
*(220T Yy24ew €L 01 720z Arenue( /| wod) Sullde) puowwniqg uneys JouLod|

*(1u844nd 01 ZZ0Z Jaqwa1das G wouy pajulodde ‘Zz0Z YaJew #L WOy SUldR) UaiSuasoy piaeq iqQ Juadin)
££1921J0 Sunesado jaiy)d)|

*S9IIAIDS 0} SAAIPIBJIP 3IIAIDS Yeay Sulpuiq Suinssi pue aduew.loyiad

92IAJ3S SuliojuOW ‘syiom Jended Jofew ‘suoire)al jelisnpul SuiSeuew ‘Suiuueld apim-alels

apnjoul saniqisuodsay ‘waisAs yyeay 40329s d1jgnd ay3 Jo JusWaSeurW 11I9A0 Y1 404 31qIsuodsay
“(zzoT Yaiew €y

01 6L0Z Jaquwa1das 6L wouy parutodde ‘610z Joquandas gL 01 £ wouy Suilde) piaiysxep uyol iq /ouLiod
*(1ua.44nd 01 20T 41990120 £ W04 pajulodde ‘2z0oz Yd4ew +L wody Sullde) puowwniq uneys . quaLin)
+Y3)eaH jo jJuswaedaq ‘|essuan-10139.1q

Japjoy uoiisod

91113 UOIHSOd

(PanunUOd) sa4nsodsip jauuosiad JuswaSeuew Ay °g 910N

jrdord wc:— 0¢ papua Jealk 9yl 104
Sluswalels jeldueuli ayl Jo ued m:_ELouF pue 0] SolON
y1jeaH 4o uawuedaq



LT

LS€

(049

89
0L€

6%l

[440]4

(41

L6T
L8

L

9ze
ki

€¢0¢

000.$

s1yauag 1e10]

- - | e e | ¢ L S s | ae e
- - | st oz | ¢ 9 € € | soe 89z
- - - L - z - - - 8L
- - g - L - - - | -
- - i oy | £ o | - - | zee e
- - a8t | ¢ 9 ! v | €L 88z
- - - Y - L - - - 6
- - | el - Y - 6 - |88l -
- - |- I - S - | s -
- - | og 8 | £ & | ¥ 9 | &g 298

¢coc €eoce
000.$
s1jauaq
uolyeulwia]

¢coc €coe
000.$
STIENEL]
1uswAhojdwa
-1s0d
syjauaq 9akojdws J13y10

¢c0e  €coe
000.$
s1jauaq
wJal Suo

[4A\TAR XA T4
000.$
s1jauaq
Alelsuow-uopN

[4A\TAR XA T4
000.$
s1jauaq
Alelsuop

S11JoUQ WIS1-10YS

*92J010M
y1eay Japuels| Hesis salio] pue jeuiSiioqy ayl Suiamodwa pue SI9PUBRISUIINY JBPUR]S| HBILS SBJI0 |
pue jeuISLIoqy 10} S9W0231N0 Yljeay Suiroidwi 10 uoidalip pue ASa1ea1s ayl Suipinoad Joy aiqisuodsay

"(1ua4and 01 6107 18quialdas Gz) uesoun auajhey uarin)

1921J0 Y1)eaH suonen 1s4i4 Jay)

*sSul1ayo ASojouyday

11e Jo Auigejeds pue ‘Aljigenas ‘“Aoualsisuod ‘@duewsopad ysSiy Sulinsse ‘sanirerniul ASojouyday
Surureyurew pue ‘Sunuawaldwi ‘Suidojanap Jo spadse (e 01 diysiapes) Suipinoid 104 a1qisuodsay
“(€20z Aew L 01 6107 Joquiandas €7) usaio uelweq JuaLind

‘(aua4ind 01 €20z Aew z wouy Sunoe) Aj1ay eAuel uq unapuf

pue)jsuaan YijeaHs ‘jesausn-1013a41q fAindag

"921AI9S dURINqUIY

puejSUINY 8Y3 JO SUOIeIdO |]BI9A0 PpUB UOIIIBIIP JISD1RIIS BY] 10} 91qeIUNOIIE puk dlgisuodsay
‘(Lzoz 3SN3NY 9 01 LLOZ dUN[ €) S3)MOg 119SSNY JoULIOS

*(3uaund 01 zzoz Aenigad £ wody pajulodde ‘Lzoz 1sn3ny £ wou Sunoe) Aisw3 Sieud quasin)
S9JIAI9S dUBINGUY PUBISUBINY ‘4BUOISSILWO)

‘puBRISUSAND UI Y1jeay Jo) epuase d1591ells

9y} JO UOIIBN|BAS pUB UOIINIAX3 ‘USISap 3yl aAalp 01 diysiapea)] J18a1eJ1s Suipinoad 1oy a)qisuodsay
(€C0q

Rew Lz 01 20z Joquiaidas g wouy pajulodde ‘zzoz Arenuef 4z wouy Sunde) Jipjof eulwse( .u:mmta.u
*(3ua14nd 01 £20T AeW 7z WoJ) SUIDR) JIR)DUIS PIARQ ‘Wilidu]

+xxUOISINIQ WI0JBY pue fO1j0d ‘ASarens ‘|esauan-10129.1Q 91eI1D0SSY

'S}e94Y) Y}eay Jaylo pue Saseasip ajqediunwwod 0} puodsal pue

Anuapi 0y Aydeded s,91e1S 9y SululeIUIeW PUR SUI9ISISAO ‘PURISUIINY 404 SBINAIDE ssaupaledald
£oussiaws pue asuodsal £HuaSIawa ‘UolleuIpIo0d J3IsesIp ‘suSiedwed uolrew.oyul yyesy ayy
Suipea) apn)dul saniqisuodsal Jayung "waisAs yyeay s,a1eis ayl Jo sallAIlde Alo1eingal Jofew Jayio
pue uoidaloid yneay ‘yyesay uonreindod ‘yyeay dngnd ayi 01 diysiapes) Suipiroid 1oy 3)gisuodsay
‘(Lz0z 4990120 LE 01 5L0Z AIn( 9) SUNOA 811duues( UQ /ouULIo

‘(d1wapued 6L-AINOD

9yl pajpuey pJenian Jg uayl SUNOA Jd 311Ym 0Z0Z aun( L wouy Sullde) JIINIW YUY Joid ‘wiiauf
‘(3Ud44nd 01 LZ0Z Jaqwiadaq €L) pJelan uyof aq uasin)

1921J0 Y3|eaH Ja1y) puejsuasnp

Japjoy uoiisod

91113 UOIHSOd

(PaNUIIU02) $34nS01SIp JauU0sIad JuswaSeuew A3y °G 910N

jrdord wc:— 0¢ papua Jealk 9yl 104
Sluswalels jeldueuli ayl Jo ued m:_ELouF pue 0] SolON
y1jeaH 4o uawuedaq




81

‘9N0Ge PasojIsIp se JusWedaq aY1 Aq ‘dsuadxs ue se pasius03a.1 pue ‘plred aiom spuauwa)Ius JU1od YIIYm 18 ‘ZZ0Z Y218 SZ J1aUn panuipuod Juswasuelle siy ‘Suiuueld pue JUswuIsA09 |eI07 ‘81naniiselul uawdojanag
912]S 0 Juawedaq ayl Aq ‘9suadxs ue se pasiusoIal pue ‘pied Ajeriiul 849m 000 °GES 4O SIUBWSJIUS ‘UOISING WI0faY pue A21)0d A581841S 1849U89-1012811F 1II0SSY JUSIINI Y] JO TZ-LZ0Z SUlINp Wawuiodde ug .
‘18UIqB) pUP I181WdId dY] 10 JUSWLRAIq dY1 Aq ‘dsuadxd

ue se pasjuS03al pue ‘pred a1om (polisd Zz-LZ0Z PIIoU dA0Ge dy] 10) YSELS) SIUBWS)YIUS SIH Wswedaq oyl woly spuawifed yons 18y1o 10 U0eISUNWS] OU PEAISISI I8IILO SUIIBISdO JaIYD J18UI0) dY] ZZ-LZ0Z SULNG s«
18UIqE) pue 13iwdld Y] 40 JUawLIedad dy] Aq ‘9suadxa ue se pasius0al pue ‘pred aiom (poliad pajou

oA0qe 9y} 10 ZZ-L20Z 104 v\NNNm. pue £z-z2zoc 104 v\QNN.W\ SjuauWaIIuS Siy 91ep Syl 01 A0lid 'ZZ0Z 19GUISNON LZ 91049G NtmsthmQ oL} wolij swuauwAed Yyans 19y1o 10 uoneiaunuial ou ponlalal |e1alan-1013a.11q JUa4ind ot/ x
‘pueISUddANY Ul SASLASIP

9]ged1uNwwod 40 10J3u0d pue uonuanaid ‘@ue)jidains ayl ul diysiapea] Suipinoad Joj a1qisuodsay
- 962 - - - Lz - 9 - € - 092 “(3Ud44Nd 01 2Z0T 19qWa1das L) 9)391S SRIOYDIN 2U84in)
S9JINAIDS J1J1IUBIIS PUe Y1|edH dijgnd puejsuasanp ‘aseueyy |e1ausn|

*91e1S 9Y] SS0.JE d]qe]IBAE

$921A9S yyeay anoidwi 03 suoiduny pue salgalelis Sujuueld yljeay JeluswW pue 3240p10M ‘|edtuld
apIm-waisAs jo Juawdojanap pue Suluueld ayl aalp 01 diysiapes) d18a3ea1s Suipiroad 10} d)qisuodsay
- LzE - - - LE - L - 4 - L8¢ ‘(3ua44nd 01 7Z0T Jaquiardas CL) Ud( usa)0) qudLIN)
ASarens ad1nI19S pue Suluue)d jediul)) ‘eiauan-io01a4ig Aindag

*9JN12NJISBIUL 3]ING Ul JUSWISDAU] JUBIIHIUSIS

8u199SI9A0 pue sassad0.4d USISOp padueyud pue sadidesd Suipjing Aresodwaluod Suisiin ‘ASojouyasy
aJedylesy SuiSiaws SuiSelana) ‘s1asse Susixs SuiSeuew o} ydeosdde sAI1RIOGR]|0D PUR SAIIRAOUUI UP)
Suieiqus ‘uopuny A1annag weiasold jeyde) pajedipap s,yyeaH puejsuaanp suipea) 404 a)qisuodsay
8% LE - - V r4 L L - - €Y :74 "(zzoz AIn[ LE 01 Zzoz Aew SL wouy Sunoe) (eyipes uen aundauf
- 66€ - - - 8¢ - 8 - [4 - L€ “(3Ud44Nd 01 2ZOT ISNSNY L) 3IpeY ©|)1ISId 2Ud.4iM)
uoisinlq jeade) yijeay ‘essusn-1013a41q Aindag

*S9IIAIBS ddUeR|NqUIY J0} J91SIUIW pUe YJeaH 104 JaISIUIW 3y
40 921140 PUB |BIBUSD-1030341Q 9Y1 40} SDAIRRINUI JUBDIHIUSIS A]1B1S931RI1S ‘|BIIUSPIIUOD ‘DAINSUSS dWI) JO
98UueJ DAISUIXD UB JO UOoISIn0Id BY3 Ul |eJaUSD-1032311Q dY3 40 310 dY3 4o diysiapea) 404 a)qisuodsay
4114 - - - 8L - Y - 4 - 8/L - ‘(zzoz 1udy € 01 1L.20Z Ae 9 wouy Sunoe) p1aljoyds umeq “wiiauf
69 00€ - - S L 74 L 9 - S €9 (:T4 “(3Ud44Nnd 03 0T J9quwiandas 0z wouy pajulodde ‘zzoz 114dy 4 woiy Suide) Aqsiy Maynew quasind
1e48U99-10123.41d Y3 JO SO ‘103123.1Q dAIINIAXT

6002 12V AU]1qeIunoldy jeiueuid

93 Ul PauUIINO Se Sa1}IjIqeunodde A1o1niels sey 04D ayL jsuuosiad palejas adueuly Jje 03 diysiapea)
sapinosd pue Jun adueuly ayl sasiaiadns 04D ayl “luswiedaq ay3 ulyym sanssi Jusawaseuew
]eldueuly e 03 paiejas diysiapea) jeuoriesado pue 21§931e41s Yylog Suipinoad Joj a1gisuodsay

‘(zzoz Ain|

LE 01 zzoz Aew S pue zzoz Arenuef 8z 01 LzZoz 19quwialdas £z wouy Sunode) Ayueddw eyseieN widauf
‘(1Ua44Nnd 01 ZZ0Z 1Sn3ny

L pue zzoz Aew + 03 g0z Arenue( 67 ‘Lzoz Joqwiaidas 9z 01 8L0z Joqwiaidas L) fexipes uenT juatsmn)
19214J0 ddueuld JaIyd

LSl (11 - - oL [4 € - [4 L (4" Lc

9zl 6%¢ - - LL €C [4 S 9 S L0L 9Le

¢c0Cc  €¢0C ¢c0c €coc c¢ceoc  €coc  c¢ceoc  €coc  ceoe €coc  ceoe  €eoc

000.$ 000.$ 000.$ 000.$ 000.$ 000.$
s1jauag 10| s1jauaq s1jauaq STIETIET| STIETIET| STIETIET| Japjoy uoiisod

uoneuiwidl udwAhojdwa wJu918uol  Aieyguow-uon  Auelsuop
-1s0d 81111 uonISod
syjauaq 9akojdws J13y10 S}1Jausaqg w4sl-Hoys 7

(PaNnunuUod) sa4nsodsip jauuosiad JuswaSeuew Ay G 910N

jrdord wc:— 0¢ papua Jealk 9yl 104
Sluswalels jeldueuli ayl Jo ued m:_ELouF pue 0] SolON
y1jeaH 4o uawuedaq




X
A

Department of Health

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 6. Related party transactions
Transactions with other Queensland Government-controlled entities

The table below sets out the significant aggregate transactions conducted between the Department and other Queensland
Government controlled entities.

Entity

Nature of Significant Transactions

Consolidated Fund administered by Queensland Treasury on behalf of the Queensland
Government

The Department receives appropriation revenue and equity injections as the primary Refer Note 2
ongoing sources of funding from Government for its services.

As at 30 June 2023, there were outstanding balances for receivables and payables
relating to these transactions.

Queensland Government Insurance Fund (QGIF)

The Department pays an annual insurance premium for a policy that covers property Refer Note 10
loss or damage, general liability, professional indemnity, health litigation and personal
accident and illness.

WorkCover Queensland

The Department pays an annual premium for all Divisions which covers all employees of Refer Note 4
the Department in case of sustaining a work-related injury or illness.

Hospital and Health Services*

The Department procures health services from the HHSs. As at 30 June 2023, there were
outstanding balances for receivables and payables relating to these transactions (refer
Notes 14 and 19).

Cairns and Hinterland HHS 1,083,663 1,018,669
Central Queensland HHS 657,564 642,235
Central West HHS 85,039 77,216
Children's Health Queensland HHS 816,786 743,256
Darling Downs HHS 913,886 848,694
Gold Coast HHS 1,838,401 1,742,782
Mackay HHS 507,735 472,992
Metro North HHS 3,269,313 3,118,919
Metro South HHS 2,700,600 2,547,385
North West HHS 206,232 190,737
South West HHS 163,483 149,756
Sunshine Coast HHS 1,266,378 1,160,790
Torres and Cape HHS 238,912 228,662
Townsville HHS 1,099,966 1,004,256
West Moreton HHS 795,230 740,503
Wide Bay HHS 712,512 671,705

* Expenditure captured and reflected is representative of the cash funding movements that have occurred between the Department and HHSs within
the year. This does not include non-cash entries such as depreciation funding and year-end technical adjustments for payables and receivables,
reported in other notes to the statements.

In addition, the Department has the below transactions with all HHSs:
a) Charges for central services provided to HHSs such as pathology, ICT support, procurement, and linen (refer Note 3).
b) Services provided below fair value (refer Note 1).
c) Labour recoveries related to non-prescribed HHSs (refer Note 3).

The Department receives services from the Department of Energy and Public Works (DEPW) and its commercialised business
units. These mainly relate to office accommodation and facilities (leases), QFleet, repairs and maintenance and capital works.
The value of these transactions during 2022-23 was $307.0M ($133.8M in 2021-22).

The Department received shared services from the Department of Housing (formerly the Department of Communities, Housing,
and the Digital Economy (DCHDE)). Shared services provided by DCHDE have been transferred to the Department of Transport
and Main Roads from 1June 2023. The value of these transactions during 2022-23 was $13.1M ($10.8M in 2021-22).

The Department receives IT services and IT related capital projects work from the Queensland Police Service (QPS). The value
of these transactions during 2022-23 was $34.4M ($26.0M in 2021-22).
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Department of Health

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 7. Supplies and services Significant accounting policies
Lease expenses include lease rentals for short-term

2023 2022 leases, leases of low value assets and variable lease
$'000 SOODE  payments.
Dfugs . . 628,360 572,287 * Includes a June 2023 S0.2M (528.3M in 2021-22) write
Clinical supplies and services* 487,537 687,743 down of inventory to net realisable value.
Consultants and contractors 249,843 206,310 ++ Rental expenses include building rental.
Expenses relating to capital works 3,309 19,527 ’
Repairs and maintenance 215,861 206,965  *** The Department receives free information technology
Rental expenses” s1958 e o e Deperment o Lorsortand o Fode
Lease expenses 9,307 8,454 pjgital Economy prior to 1 June 2023 MoG changes), for
Computer services 212,412 171,076 service access 'by Queensland Ambulance Service to the
N Government Wireless Network.
Communications 51,937 48,635
Advertising 17,668 17,501 The fair value of these services for 2022-23 is estimated to
Catering and domestic supplies 5,826 5,066 be $7.4M (57.0M for 2021-22).
Utilities 11,026 10,237
Motor vehicles and travel 29,675 23,730
Building services 15,659 15,280
Interstate transport levy 5,433 3,029
Freight and office supplies 24,341 31,631
Other*** 106,056 83,020
2,128,399 2,162,479
Note 8. Health services
2023 2022
$'000 $'000
Hospital and Health Services* 17,868,410 16,385,479 * Inclusive of a specific COVID-19 funding component for
Mater Hospitals* 565,282 544189  Hospital and Health Services of $262.9M ($5674.0M in 2021-
R . 22) and Mater Hospitals of $12.0M (570.5M in 2021-22).
National Blood Authority 58,281 47,256
Aeromedical services 175,170 142,465
Community health service providers 139,842 136,350
Mental health service providers 97,019 80,072
Other health service providers 146,336 154,904
19,050,340 17,490,715
Note 9. Grants and subsidies
2023 2022
$'000 $'000
Medical research programs 25,304 25,467  * Inclusive of 5$31.5M COVID-19 grants to other government
Public hospital support services* 32,260 65215  departments and hospitals (565.2M in 2021-22).
Mental health and other support services 49,601 55,067
107,165 145,749
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Department of Health

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 10. Other expenses Significant accounting policies

2023 oyl Property losses and liability claim settlement

) ) amounts payable to third parties above the $10,000

$'000 SO insurance deductible and associated legal fees are

Insurance QGIF 3,021 2,820 insured through the Queensland Government

Insurance other 2,881 2,831 Insurance Fund (QGIF). For medical indemnity

non-current assets 838 - insurance deductible and associated legal fees, are

Journals and subscriptions 10,569 10,990 also insured through _QGIF. Premiums are calculated

by QGIF on a risk basis.
Legal costs 10,491 6,418
Audit fees* 1,729 1,517
Special payments** 2,046 462
Interest - lease liabilities 2,221 1,602
Net (decrease)/increase in allowance for

loss of service potential*** (17,645) 222,459
Quarantine Fees 73 795
Pandemic leave payments**** 40,918 58,262
Donated inventory***** 63,377 46,922
Donated land ****** 10,612 -
Other 16,477 8,379
147,608 363,457

*Queensland Audit Office audit fees for 2022-23 include S0.8M for financial statements audit (S0.8M in 2021-22) and $0.7M for the assurance engagement
and other audits (50.6M in 2021-22).

** In 2022-23, there were six special payments exceeding 55,000 (seven payments in 2021-22). These related to patient and other ex-gratia payments.

*** Decrease in allowance for loss of service potential in 2022-23 includes a reduction in the provision for critical supply reserves of Rapid Antigen Test
inventory (5222.5M increase in 2021-22).

***% pandemic leave payments, related to the COVID-19 pandemic, made to the Australian Government.

***+% Donated inventory includes COVID-19 medical supplies inventory (Rapid Antigen Tests) donated to HHSs, state government agencies and other
institutions.

***%%% Donation of former Wynnum hospital site to Winnam Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Corporation.

Note 11. Reconciliation of surplus to net cash from operating activities

2023 2022
$'000 $'000
Surplus/(deficit) for the year (440) 2,163
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 135,538 135,608
Impairment of non-current and other assets (4,683) 241,478
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of non-current assets (1,248) (970)
Share of (gain)/loss - associates 709 2,939
Net impairment losses on financial and contract assets 11,071 26,071
Donated non-cash assets (90,879) (80,945)
Non-cash depreciation funding expense 999,941 924,035
Other non-cash items (52,427) (251,658)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in loans and receivables 58,234 (800,460)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 121,753 103,229
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments (15,282) (22,555)
Increase/(decrease) in payables (80,233) (51,537)
Increase/(decrease) in accrued employee benefits 546,896 351,811
Increase/(decrease) in unearned revenue (497) (1,101)
Net cash from operating activities 1,628,453 578,108
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Note 12. Cash and cash equivalents Significant accounting policies

2023 Wy’ Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,

$'000 $'000 deposits held at call'with fi'nar'lcia.l institutions apd

other short-term, highly liquid investments with

Cash at bank 673,871 206,470 original maturities of one year or less that are

24-hour call deposits 7,981 7,924 readily convertible to known amounts of cash and

Fixed rate deposit 20,000 20,000  Wwhich are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
701,852 234,304 N value.

The Department's operational bank accounts are grouped within the whole-of-government set-off arrangement with the
Commonwealth Bank of Australia. The Department does not earn interest on surplus funds and is not charged interest or fees for
accessing its approved cash overdraft facility as it is part of the whole-of-government banking arrangements.

The 24-hour call deposit includes the Department’s General Trust balance. This balance is currently invested with Queensland
Treasury Corporation with approval from the Treasurer, which acknowledges the Department’s obligations to maintain sound cash
management and investment processes regarding General Trust Funds. For 2022-23 the annual effective interest rate on the 24-hour
call deposit was 4.23 per cent per annum (0.76 per cent per annum in 2021-22).

The fixed rate deposit is held with Queensland Treasury Corporation. The Department has the ability and intention to continue to
hold the deposit until maturity as the interest earned contributes towards the Queensland Government's objective of promoting high
quality health research. During 2022-23 the weighted average interest rate on this deposit was 2.13 per cent per annum (0.59 per cent
per annum in 2021-22).

Financial risk is managed in accordance with Queensland Government and departmental policies. The Department has considered
the following types of risks in relation to financial instruments:

e Liquidity risk - this risk is minimal as the Department has an approved overdraft facility of $420.0M under whole-of-government
banking arrangements to manage any cash shortfalls.

e Market risk (interest rate risk) - the Department has interest rate exposure on its 24-hour call deposits and fixed rate deposits.
Changes in interest rates have a minimal effect on the operating results of the Department.

e  Credit risk - the credit risk relating to deposits is minimal as all Department deposits are held by the State through Queensland
Treasury Corporation and the Commonwealth Bank of Australia. The Department’s maximum exposure to credit risk on
receivables is their total carrying amount (refer Note 14).

Note 13. Restricted assets

The Department’'s General Trust fund balance
primarily relates to cash contributions received

2023 PR from Pathology Queensland and from external

$'000 SN entities to provide for education, study, and

General Trust 10,251 9899  research in clinical areas. Contributions are also

. . ' received from benefactors in the form of gifts,

Clinical drug trials S e donations and bequests and are demarcated for
10,723 11,088  stipulated purposes.
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Note 14. Loans and receivables

Non-
Current
2022 2022

$'000 $'000

Non-
Current

Current Current

2023 2023
$'000 $'000

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade Receivables 183,656 - 183,656 208,509 - 208,509
Less: Allowance for impairment of
receivables (47,874) - (47,874) (73,862) - (73,862)
Receivables from HHSs 1,421,515 - 1,421,515 1,150,468 - 1,150,468
Appropriation Receivable 595,841 - 595,841 1,213,443 - 1,213,443
Grants receivable 199,018 - 199,018 252,732 = 252,732
Annual leave reimbursements 354,932 - 354,932 305,245 - 305,245
Long service leave reimbursements 64,830 - 64,830 58,228 - 58,228
Right of use asset lease receivable 1,229 40,393 41,622 1,925 50,369 52,294
Other Receivables 472 15 487 433 = 433
2,773,619 40,408 2,814,027 3,117,121 50,369 3,167,490
PAYROLL LOANS
Payroll Overpayments 24,189 25,596 49,785 35,759 13,262 49,021
Less: Overpayments impairment (391) (4,704) (5,095) (20,421) (3,772) (24,193)
Payroll Cash Advances 73 - 73 1,969 - 1,969
Less: Payroll Cash Advances impairment (60) - (60) (1,835) - (1,835)
Payroll Pay Date Loan 4,130 36,737 40,867 4,159 41,030 45,189
Less: Pay date loan fair value adjustment - (6,161) (6,161) (99) (7,278) (7,377)
Less: Pay date loan impairment - (473) (473) - (590) (590)
27,941 50,995 78,936 19,532 42,652 62,184
GST
GST input tax credits receivable 37,210 - 37,210 40,880 - 40,880
Less: GST payable (987) - (987) (880) - (880)
36,223 - 36,223 40,000 - 40,000
2,837,783 91,403 2,929,186 3,176,653 93,021 3,269,674

Significant accounting policies

Trade receivables are generally settled within 60 days;
however, some debt may take longer to recover. The
recoverability of trade debtors is reviewed on an ongoing
basis. All known bad debts are written off when identified.

The pay date loan was to provide a transitional loan equal
to two weeks' net pay, and is measured at fair value
calculated as the present value of the expected future cash
flows over the estimated life of the loan, discounted using a
risk-free effective interest rate of 3.05 per cent. The loan is
considered to be low risk of non-repayment as it is
legislatively recoverable from recipients upon termination
of their employment with the Department. The loan is
expected to be fully recovered as individuals leave the
Department and the majority of the balance remaining is
expected to be recovered over the next 10 years. The
Department is undertaking a process to recover these debts
by working with the individuals affected.

The non-current portion of payroll overpayments has not
been discounted to present value as this could not be
reliably estimated, due to the uncertainty of the timing of
future cash receipts.

Credit risk exposure of receivables

There are no other credit enhancements relating to the
Department’s receivables. The Department has not
experienced any significant delays in receiving payments
from debtors during this COVID-19 pandemic to 30 June 2023,
as the majority of the debt is with other government
agencies.

The closing balance of receivables arising from contracts
with customers at 30 June 2023 is $326.9M ($266.9M in 2021-
22).

The Department uses a provision matrix to measure the
expected credit losses on trade receivables. The
calculations reflect historical observed default rates
calculated using impairments (credit losses) experienced on
past sales transactions during the last 5 years preceding
30 June 2023. This data is consolidated, and a probability
rate is calculated based on receivables moving into the next
ageing bracket. Based on average rates for the 5-year
period, an expected credit loss calculation matrix is
prepared.

Historical default rates are adjusted by reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information for expected
changes in macroeconomic indicators that affect the future
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Note 14. Loans and receivables (continued)

recovery of those receivables. To reflect the expected future
changes the following relevant economic factors were
considered: Australian GDP Annual Growth Rate;
Unemployment Rate; and Government Debt to GDP
percentage. Based on the expected change in Australia’s
economic forecast a conservative adjustment of 4.0 per cent
has been calculated. This is determined to be the most

Credit risk exposure of loans and receivables

relevant forward-looking indicator for receivables. The
credit loss rate is reviewed twice a year.

The total adjusted credit loss rate has been applied to the
aged debtors (excluding any government, scholarship and
payroll customers) to derive the expected credit loss value
as at 30 June 2023. Set out below is the Department’s credit
risk exposure with trade and other debtors broken down by
ageing band.

Expected Expected
credit credit
Gross receivables *Loss rate losses Gross receivables  *Loss rate losses
2023 2023 2023 2022 2022 2022
$'000 % $'000 $'000 % $'000

Ageing
Not Due 2,760 6.41% (177) 8,247 8.08% (666)
0 to 30 days 1,264 7.83% (99) 12,537 8.02% (1,006)
31to 60 days 1,037 9.64% (100) 8,966 8.65% (776)
61to0 90 days 761 11.96% (91) 8,729 9.76% (852)
91to 120 days 1,069 14.59% (156) 8,040 13.17% (1,059)
More than 120 days 46,961 100.00% (46,962) 51,318 100.00% (51,318)
53,852 (47,585) 97,837 (55,677)

*Loss rate percentage is derived by combining both the Department and QAS.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Department
assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset, or group of financial assets, is impaired. Objective
evidence may include the financial difficulties of the debtor,
changes in debtor credit ratings and current outstanding
account balances. The loss allowance for trade receivables
reflects the lifetime expected credit losses and incorporates
reasonable and supportable forward-looking information as
at 30 June 2023.

Ageing of loans and receivables

Past Due but

An allowance for impairment of $53.5M ($100.5M in 2021-22)
has been recognised in relation to payroll overpayments,
pay date transitional loan and other receivables. Allowance
for other non-government receivables, being subject to
AASB 9, are assessed based on their value, quantity, and age
of the amounts. An impairment matrix for this portion of
receivables is reviewed twice a year.

The Department recognises the net change of impairment as
allimpairments are recorded against the allowance account.

Past Due but

Not impaired Not impaired Impaired Impaired
2023 2022 2023 2022
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
0 to 30 days 3,728 20,857 296 6,716
31to 60 days 935 8,256 103 2,361
6110 90 days 642 8,271 19 2,475
More than 90 days 911 9,146 52,984 88,928
6,216 46,530 53,502 100,480

Movement in the allowance for impairment
2023 2022
$'000 $'000
Opening balance 100,480 73,594
Increase/(Decrease) in impairment recognised on aged receivables (46,978) 48,331
53,502 121,925
Increase/(Decrease) in impairment recognised on accrued revenue - quarantine fees - (21,445)
Closing balance 53,502 100,480
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Note 15. Inventories Significant accounting policies
Inventories are measured at weighted average cost,
2023 2022 adjusted for obsolescence, other than general
$'000 SOODE  vaccine stock which is measured at cost on a first in
Medical supplies and drugs 342,713 426,373  first out basis. Inventory is held at the lower of cost
Less: Allowance for loss of service and net realisable value.
potential* (218,815) (267,331)
123,898 159 042 Inventories consist mainly of pharmacy and general
! ! medical supplies held for sale to HHSs.
Non-medical, engineering and other 49,071 45204  *Includes provision for critical supply reserve Rapid
Catering and domestic 5,300 4906 Antigen Test inventory (see Note 10).
178,278 209,152

Note 16. Property, plant and equipment

Plant and Capital works
Buildings equipment in progress

$'000 $'000 $'000

Gross 262,909 1,185,477 933,510 796,192 3,178,088
Less: Accumulated depreciation - (657,172) (661,692) - (1,318,864)
Carrying amount at end of period 262,909 528,305 271,818 796,192 1,859,224
Categorisation of fair value hierarchy Level 2 Level 3

Movement

Carrying amount at start of period 230,377 511,178 250,794 233,354 1,225,703
Additions 2,820 61 68,236 564,771 635,888
Donations received 1,754 - - - 1,754
Donations made (10,612) - (5) - (10,617)
Disposals - - (2,575) - (2,575)
Revaluation increments/(decrements) 32,682 33,588 - - 66,270
Transfers (to)/from HHSs* 321 (92,128) (16,433) 151,544 43,304
Transfers (to)/from intangibles - 80 - - 80
Transfer (to)/from Dept. of Energy and Public

Works 70 118 - - 188
Transfers between classes 5,497 102,447 45,533 (153,477) -
Depreciation expense - (27,039) (73,732) - (100,771)
Carrying amount at end of period 262,909 528,305 271,818 796,192 1,859,224

* Transfer into Capital works in progress (5151.5M) relates to capital projects initiated in Metro South Hospital & Health Service and transferred
into the Department for management and completion.

Plant and Capital works

Buildings equipment in progress
$’000 $’000 $’000

Gross 230,377 1,103,832 892,719 233,354 2,460,282
Less: Accumulated depreciation - (592,654) (641,925) - (1,234,579)
Carrying amount at end of period 230,377 511,178 250,794 233,354 1,225,703
Categorisation of fair value hierarchy Level 2 Level 3
Movement
Carrying amount at start of period 169,283 451,738 286,816 93,824 1,001,661
Additions 32,285 27,174 41,900 163,024 264,383
Donations made - - (5) - (5)
Disposals (430) (252) (2,633) - (3,315)
Revaluation increments/(decrements) 20,716 37,988 - - 58,704
Transfers (to)/from HHSs (1,510) (21,928) (19,934) - (43,372)
Transfer (to)/from Queensland Fire and
Emergency Services 5,535 37,885 - - 43,420
Transfer (to)/from Economic Development Qld 4,498 - - - 4,498
Transfers between classes - 3,816 19,678 (23,494) -
Depreciation expense - (25,243) (75,028) - (100,271)
Carrying amount at end of period 230,377 511,178 250,794 233,354 1,225,703
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Note 16. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost
plus any other costs directly incurred in bringing the asset
to the condition ready for use. Iltems or components that
form an integral part of an asset and are separately
identifiable are recognised as a single asset. Significant
projects undertaken on behalf of HHSs which are completed
within the financial year are valued and transferred to the
HHS at fair value. The cost of items acquired during the
financial year has been determined by management to
materially represent the fair value at the end of the
reporting period.

Assets received for no consideration from another
Queensland Government agency are recognised at fair
value, being the net book value recorded by the transferor
immediately prior to the transfer. Assets acquired at no cost,
or for nominal consideration, other than a transfer from
another Queensland Government entity, are initially
recognised at their fair value by the Department at the date
of acquisition.

The Department recognises items of property, plant and
equipment when they have a useful life of more than one
year and have a cost or fair value equal to or greater than
the following thresholds:

e $10,000 for Buildings (including land improvement)
e $1for Land
e $5,000 for Plant and equipment

Depreciation (representing a consumption of an asset over
time) is calculated on a straight-line basis (equal amount of
depreciation charged each year). The residual (or scrap)
value is assumed to be zero, with the exception of
ambulances. Annual depreciation is based on the cost or the
fair value of the asset and the Department’s assessments of
the remaining useful life of individual assets. Land is not
depreciated as it has an unlimited useful life. Assets under
construction (work in progress) are not depreciated until
they are ready for use.

The Department’s buildings have total useful lives ranging
from 3 to 68 years, with exceptions up to 105 years; for plant
and equipment the total useful life is between 2 and 26
years, with exceptions up to 52 years:

e 2 to 20 years for Computer equipment, and Office
furniture & equipment, with exceptions up to 42 years

e 2to 18 years for Medical equipment, with exceptions
up to 42 years

e 3 to 26 years for Engineering equipment, with
exceptions up to 52 years

e 3 to 15 years for Vehicles, with exceptions up to 22
years

value measurement of a non-current asset is determined by
taking into account its highest and best use (the highest
value regardless of current use). All assets of the
Department for which fair value is measured in line with the
fair value hierarchy, take into account observable and
unobservable data inputs.

Observable inputs, which are used in Level 2 ratings, are
publicly available data relevant to the characteristics of the
assets being valued, such as published sales data for land
and residential dwellings. Unobservable inputs are data,
assumptions, and judgements not available publicly, but
relevant to the characteristics of the assets being valued
and are used in Level 3 ratings. Significant unobservable
inputs used by the Department include subjective
adjustments made to observable data to take account of any
specialised nature of the buildings (i.e., laboratories,
stations and heritage listed), including historical and
current construction contracts (and/or estimates of such
costs), and assessments of technological and external
obsolescence and physical deterioration as well as
remaining useful life. Unobservable inputs are used to the
extent that sufficient relevant and reliable observable
inputs are not available for similar assets.

Reflecting the specialised nature of health service buildings,
fair value is determined using current replacement cost
methodology. Current replacement cost represents the price
that would be received for the asset, based on the estimated
cost to construct a substitute asset of comparable utility,
adjusted for obsolescence. This requires identification of
the full cost of a replacement asset, adjusted to take
account of the age and obsolescence of the existing asset.
The cost of a replacement asset is determined by reference
to a current day equivalent asset, built to current standards
and with current materials.

The Department's land and buildings are independently and
professionally valued by the State Valuation Service
(qualified valuers) and AECOM (qualified quantity surveyors)
respectively. The Department also revalue significant, newly
commissioned assets in the same manner to ensure that
they are transferred to HHSs at fair value.

Any revaluation increment arising on the revaluation of an
asset is credited to the asset revaluation surplus of the
appropriate class, except to the extent it reverses a
revaluation decrement for the class previously recognised
as an expense. A decrease in the carrying amount on
revaluation is expensed to the extent it exceeds the balance,
if any, of the revaluation surplus. On revaluation,
accumulated depreciation is restated proportionately with
the change in the carrying amount of the asset and any
change in the estimate of remaining useful life.

Fair Value Measurement

Land and buildings are measured at fair value, which are
reviewed each year to ensure they are materially correct.
Land and buildings are comprehensively revalued once
every five years, or whenever volatility is detected, with
values adjusted for indexation in the interim years. Fair

Impairment of non-current assets

All non-current assets held at cost are assessed for
indicators of impairment on an annual basis. If an indicator
of impairment exists, the Department determines the asset’s
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal). Any amounts by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is
considered an impairment loss.
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Note 16. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Land

The fair value of land was based on publicly available data
including recent sales of similar land in nearby localities. In
determining the values, adjustments were made to the sales
data to take into account the land’s size, street/road
frontage and access and any significant factors such as land
zoning and easements. Land zonings and easements
indicate the permissible use and potential development of
the land.

The revaluation program resulted in a $32.5M increment
($23.1M increment in 2021-22) to the carrying amount of land.
For land not subject to comprehensive valuations, indices of
between 0.9 to 2.3 were applied, which were sourced from
the State Valuation Services.

The Department recognises land at Tangalooma valued at
$0.10M ($0.10M in 2021-22) which is owned by third parties
and leased to the Department under various agreements.
The Department has restricted use of this land.

Buildings

The Department recognises five heritage buildings held at
value of $3.7M (five buildings at value of $3.7M in 2021-22).
An independent fully comprehensive revaluation of 225
buildings and site improvements was performed during
2022-23. For all remaining buildings and site improvements
not subject to independent fully comprehensive

Note 17. Leases

a) Lessee

revaluations during 2022-23, indices of between 1.085
(Metropolitan zones) to 1.12 (Rural zones) were instead
applied, which were sourced from AECOM.

Indices are based on inflation (rises in labour, plant, and
material prices) across the industry and take into account
regional variances due to specific market conditions,
including being assessed for the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic. The state of Queensland generally has seen
above market price increases during the past year that were
largely driven by higher demand for property due to buyer
behaviours, net immigration from other states and
construction cost increases from interruptions to supply
chains all of which have resulted from the COVID-19
pandemic. The building valuations for 2022-23 resulted in a
net increment to the building portfolio of $32.1M ($36.8M
increment in 2021-2022).

Capital work in progress

The Department is responsible for managing major health
infrastructure projects for the HHSs. During the construction
phase these projects remain on the Department’s Statement
of financial position as a work in progress asset. Significant,
newly commissioned assets are firstly transferred to the
Department’s building class, revalued to fair value, and then
transferred to the respective HHS. Other commissioned
assets are transferred from the Department’'s work in
progress to the respective HHS which recognises assets in
their relevant asset class.

This note provides information for leases where the Department is a lessee. For leases where the Department is a lessor, see

Note 17 (b).

(i) The statement of financial position shows the following amounts relating to leases:

Right-of-use assets

Buildings Equipment
$’'000 $’000
Gross 16,057 123 16,180
Less: Accumulated depreciation (3,054) (22) (3,076)
Carrying amount at end of period 13,003 101 13,104
Movement
Carrying amount at start of period 16,418 - 16,418
Additions 123 123
Re-measurements (2,693) - (2,693)
Depreciation expense (722) (22) (744)
Carrying amount at end of period 13,003 101 13,104

Buildings Equipment
$'000 $'000
Gross 18,750 - 18,750
Less: Accumulated depreciation (2,332) - (2,332)
Carrying amount at end of period 16,418 - 16,418
Movement
Carrying amount at start of period 20,726 - 20,726
Re-measurements (3,439) - (3,439)
Depreciation expense (869) - (869)
Other adjustments -
Carrying amount at end of period 16,418 - 16,418
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Note 17. Leases (continued)

Lease liabilities

2023 2022
$'000 $'000

Current 1,731 2,532
Non-current 53,148 66,276
54,879 68,808

Significant accounting policies

The Department as lessee

For any new contracts entered into, the Department
considers whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease
is defined as a contract, or part of a contract, which conveys
the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. To apply this
definition the Department assesses whether the contract
meets three key evaluations which are whether:

e the contract contains an identified asset, which is either
explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly specified
by being identified at the time the asset is made available
to the Department;

e the Department has the right to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from use of the identified asset
throughout the period of use, considering its rights within
the defined scope of the contract; and

e the Department has the right to direct the use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use. The
Department also assesses whether it has the right to direct
how and for what purpose the asset is used throughout the
period of use.

The majority of lease contracts are held with the Department
of Energy and Public Works (DEPW) for non-specialised,
commercial office accommodation through the Queensland
Government Accommodation Office (QGAO) and residential
accommodation through the Government Employee Housing
(GEH) program.

Effective 1 July 2019, amendments to the framework
agreements that govern QGAO and GEH result in the above
arrangements being exempt from lease accounting under
AASB 16. This is due to DEPW having substantive substitution
rights over the non-specialised, commercial office
accommodation, and residential premises assets used
within these arrangements. From 2019-20 onwards, costs for
these services continue to be expensed as supplies and
services expenditure when incurred.

Effective 1 July 2019, motor vehicles provided under QFleet
program are exempt from lease accounting under AASB 16.
This is due to DEPW holding substantive substitution rights
for vehicles provided under the scheme. From 2019-20
onward, costs for these services continue to be expensed as
supplies and services expenditure when incurred.

direct costs incurred by the Department, an estimate of any
costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the
lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease
commencement date (net of any incentives received).

The Department depreciates the right-of-use assets on a
straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to
the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use
asset or the end of the lease term. The Department also
assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such
indicators exist.

At the commencement date, the Department measures the
lease liability at the present value of the lease payments
unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the
Department’s incremental borrowing rate. Queensland
Treasury (QT) have mandated that unless an implicit rate is
stated in the lease, that agencies are to use incremental
borrowing rates. QT have mandated that Queensland
Treasury Corporation’s Fixed Rate Loan rates are to be used
as the incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability are made up of fixed payments (including in
substance fixed payments), variable payments based on an
index or rate, amounts expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee and payments arising from options
reasonably certain to be exercised.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability is reduced
for payments made and increased for interest. It is
remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or
if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When
the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding
adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit
and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.

The Department has elected to account for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets using the practical
expedients. Instead of recognising a right-of-use asset and
lease liability, the payments in relation to these are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The total cash outflow for leases in 2022-23 was $2.1M ($2.9M
in 2021-22).

Refer to Note 10 for the lease liability interest expense.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Department recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet.
The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up
of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial

The Department holds an occupancy lease with
Translational Research Institute Pty Ltd (TRI). The
Department acts as a lessor by sub-leasing a portion of the
leased property (See 17 (b)). Under AASB 16 the Department
recognises transactions as both lessee and lessor.
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Note 17. Leases (continued) lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The

b) Lessor

The Department acts as a lessor by sub-leasing floor space in the TRI building to the University of Queensland. The sub-lease
with the lessor is for the same term as that for the Department on the head lease. The sub-lease expires in 2043.

(i) The statement of financial position shows the following amounts relating to lessors:

Lease receivable

2023 2022
$'000 $'000
Current 1,229 1,925
Non-current 40,393 50,369
41,622 52,294
(7j) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss
The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to lessors:
2023 2022
$'000 $'000
Rentals received from operating leases (included in other revenue) 6,388 6,746
Interest received (Included in interest revenue) 1,864 1,387
8,252 8,133
The Department'has gssesseq that the sub-leaseisa ﬁnan?e e retains the total lease liability relating to the head lease
lease after considering the indicators of a finance lease in in its statement of financial position, which represents
AASB 16. Accordingly, as a sub-lessor the Department has the lease payments owed to the head lessor; and

applied the following accounting policy:
e recognises during the term of the lease the finance

e derecognises a portion of the right-of-use asset relating income on the sublease.
to the head lease that it transfers to the sub-lessee, and
recognises the net investment in the sublease as a e The Department also assesses the receivable for
receivable; and impairment.

c) Maturity analysis
Minimum lease cash payments to be made on the lease liability and received on the sub-lease are as follows:

Lease liability payments to be Lease receivable payments to

made be received
2023 2022 2023 2022
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
In year1 4,437 4,211 3,339 3,200
In year 2 4,437 4,211 3,339 3,200
In year 3 4,415 4,211 3,339 3,200
In year & 4,393 4,211 3,339 3,200
In year 5 4,393 4,211 3,339 3,200
Later than 5 years 65,895 67,369 50,080 51,201
87,970 88,424 66,775 67,201
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Note 18. Intangibles

Software work in

Software purchased Software generated progress
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Gross 123,119 125,380 649,597 599,336 37,690 62,085 810,406 786,801
Less: Accumulated
amortisation (113,133)  (112,007) (399,245)  (372,276) - - (512,378)  (484,283)
Carrying amount at end
of period 9,986 13,373 250,352 227,060 37,690 62,085 298,028 302,518

Represented by movements in carrying amount:

Carrying value at 1 )july 13,373 17,966 227,060 237,993 62,085 65,395 302,518 321,354
Additions - 259 11,581 12,949 18,762 3,699 30,343 16,907
Disposals - - (572) (3,538) - - (572) (3,538)

Transfers (to)/from
property, plant &

equipment - - - - (80) - (80) -
Transfers (to)/from HHSs (158) - - 2,263 - - (158) 2,263
Transfers between

classes - - 43,077 7,009 (43,077) (7,009) - -
Amortisation expense (3,229) (4,852) (30,794) (29,616) - - (34,023) (34,468)
Carrying amount at end

of period 9,986 13,373 250,352 227,060 37,690 62,085 298,028 302,518

Significant accounting policies

Intangible assets are only recognised if their cost is equal to or greater than $100,000. Intangible assets are recorded at cost,
which is, purchase price plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition, less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Internally generated software includes all direct costs associated with the development of that software. All other
costs are expensed as incurred. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life with
a residual value of zero. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed periodically, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

The total useful life for the Department's software ranges from 3 to 28 years, with exceptions up to 30 years. The Department
controls registered intellectual property, in the form of patents, designs and trademarks, and other unregistered intellectual
property, in the form of copyright. At the reporting dates these intellectual property assets do not meet the recognition criteria
as their values cannot be measured reliably.

Note 19. Payables Significant accounting policies

2023 2022 Payables are recognised for amounts to be paid in

i ) the future for goods and services received. Trade

$'000 $'000 payables are measured at the agreed

Trade payables 359,645 548,976  purchase/contract price, gross of applicable trade

Appropriations payable 1,179,527 1,258,428  and other discounts. The amounts are unsecured

Contract Liability - Commonwealth - 11,328  and normally settled within 60 days.

Hospital and Health Service payables 338,138 168,068
PAYG withholdings 185,563 147,387
Other payables 1,919 20,344
2,064,792 2,154,531
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Note 20. Accrued employee benefits Significant accounting policies
Wages and salaries due but unpaid at reporting
2023 2022 date are recognised at current salary rates and are
$'000 SO expected to be fully settled within 12 months of
Salaries and wages accrued 904,154 497,134 repqrting date. These liabi‘li'gies are recognised at
Annual leave levy payable 448213 333,679 undlscou_nted values. Provisions fc_)r annual leave,
. long service leave and superannuation are reported
Long service leave levy payable 94,007 82141 on a whole-of-government basis pursuant to AASB
Other employee entitlements payable 113,141 99,665  1049. For changes to employer arrangements refer

1,559,515 1,012,619 ~ to Note 4.

Note 21. Asset revaluation surplus

Buildings Buildings

2023 2022
$'000 $'000
Carrying amount at start of period 78,976 58,635 223,026 184,748 302,002 243,383
Asset revaluation increment/(decrement) 32,682 20,716 33,588 37,988 66,270 58,704
Asset revaluation transferred to retained
surplus* (2) (375) (72) 290 (74) (85)
Carrying amount at end of period 111,656 78,976 256,542 223,026 368,198 302,002

* Represents transfers via Equity for revaluation increments/(decrements) on land & building assets recorded by the Department of Health in its
capacity as the asset management administrator.

Note 22. Interests in associates
Associates

The Department has two associated entities - Translational Research Institute Pty Ltd and Translational Research Institute
Trust (TRI Trust). The Department does not control either entity but does have significant influence over the financial and
operating policy decisions. The Department uses the equity method to account for its interest in associates.

Translational Research Institute Pty Ltd (the Company) is the trustee of the TRI Trust and does not trade.

The objectives of the TRI Trust are to maintain the Translational Research Institute Facility (TRI Facility), and to operate and
manage the TRI Facility to promote medical study, research, and education.

TRI has a 31 December year end. TRI's financial statements for the 12 months 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023, endorsed by the TRI
Board, have been used to apply the equity method. There have been no changes to accounting policies or any changes to any
agreements with TRI since 31 December 2022. The information disclosed below reflects the amounts presented in the financial
statements of TRl and not the Department’s share of those amounts. Where necessary, they have been amended to reflect
adjustments made by the Department, including fair value adjustments and modifications for differences in accounting policy.

Joint Operations

Effective July 1, 2021, the Department, through Queensland Ambulance Service (QAS), entered a joint operation agreement with
Queensland Fire and Emergency Services (QFES), entitled “Co-location of Kedron Park Facility”. The agreement provides for
the co-location, management, and operation of the Emergency Services Complex (the “Complex”), located at Kedron,
Queensland. In accordance with the agreement, the Department has a 39.6% share of net assets jointly owned with QFES. The
Department’s initial share of the net assets was recognised in equity ($50.1M), comprising cash and cash equivalents ($6.7M)
and property, plant and equipment ($43.4M).

The Department is a partner to the Australian e-Health Research Centre (AEHRC) joint operation. The current agreement runs
to 30 June 2027. The Department has no rights to the net assets or liabilities of the AEHRC, except a return of cash contributions
in limited circumstances. The Department makes a cash contribution of $1.5M per annum.
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Note 22. Interests in associates (continued)

Entity Ownership Interest
Translational Research Institute Pty Ltd (the Company)
Incorporated in Australia on 12 June 2009 25 shares of $1 per share (25% shareholding)
Translational Research Institute Trust (TRI Trust)
Incorporated in Australia on 16 June 2009 25 units with equal voting rights (25% of voting rights)
2023 2022
$'000 $'000
SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Revenue 38,949 26,434
Expenses (41,782) (38,191)
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (2,833) (11,757)
Other comprehensive income o -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (2,833) (11,757)
THE DEPARTMENT'S SHARE OF TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (709) (2,939)
The summarised financial information of the TRI Trust is set out below:
2023 2022
$'000 $'000
SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Current assets 58,976 34,116
Non-current assets 249,060 275,079
TOTAL ASSETS 308,036 309,195
Current liabilities 13,590 11,118
Non-current liabilities 16,751 17,547
TOTAL LIABILITIES 30,341 28,665
NET ASSETS 277,695 280,530
THE DEPARTMENT'S SHARE OF NET ASSETS 69,425 70,133

Note 23. Contingencies
Guarantees

As at 30 June 2023 the Department held guarantees of $65.5M ($20.7M in 2021-22) from third parties which are related to capital
projects. These amounts have not been recognised as assets in the financial statements.

Litigation in progress

At 30 June 2023, the Department had 17 litigation cases before the courts. As civil litigation is underwritten by the QGIF, the
Department’s liability in this area is limited up to $20,000 per insurance event. The Department’s legal advisers and
management believe it would be misleading to estimate the final amount payable (if any) in respect of litigation before the
courts at this time. Queensland’s Human Rights Act 2079 (the Act) protects 23 human rights and commenced from 1 January
2020. Under section 97 of the Act, public entities are required to include the number of human rights complaints received.
For the year ended 30 June 2023, Queensland Health received 21 human rights complaints, of which there were seven related
cases remaining open.

At 30 June 2022, the Department reported on a litigation case that has not been resolved as at 30 June 2023. This is in

relation to Queensland Industrial Relations Commission applications on the applicability of specialty allowances in certain
regions. The outcome of this litigation remains uncertain.
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Note 24. Commitments for expenditure

Lease - Lease -
Capital Capital operating operating
2023 2022 2023 2022
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Committed at reporting date but not recognised as liabilities, payable:
within 1 year 782,752 508,352 57,590 52,718
1year to 5 years 85,526 628 120,797 116,791
more than 5 years - 27 20,210 22,165
868,278 509,007 198,597 191,674

Significant leases are entered into by the Department as a way of acquiring access to office accommodation facilities. Lease
terms, for these leases, extend over a period of 1to 10 years. The Department has no options to purchase any of the leased
spaces at the conclusion of the lease. Some leases do provide the option for a right of renewal at which time the lease terms
are renegotiated. Lease payments are generally fixed but do contain annual inflation escalation clauses upon which future
year rentals are determined, with rates ranging between 2 to 4 per cent.

Note 25. Administered transactions and balances

Significant accounting policies

The Department administers, but does not control, certain resources on behalf of the Queensland Government. In doing so it
has responsibility and is accountable for administering related transactions and items but does not have the discretion to
deploy the resources for the achievement of the Department’s objectives.

Amounts appropriated to the Department for transfer to other entities are reported as administered appropriation items.

Administered transactions and balances are comprised primarily of the movement of funds to the Queensland Office of the
Health Ombudsman, the Queensland Mental Health Commission and Health and Wellbeing Queensland.

Original Actual vs
Budget budget

2023 variance
$'000 $'000

Administered revenues

Administered item appropriation 71,535 71,129 71,381 i 406
Taxes, fees and fines 61 4 63 57
Total administered revenues 71,596 71,133 71,444 463

Administered expenses

Grants 71,535 71,133 71,381 . 402
Other expenses 61 - 63 61
Total administered expenses 71,596 71,133 71,444 463

Administered assets

Current
Cash 12 5 2 7
Total administered assets 12 5 2 7

Administered liabilities

Current
Payables 12 5 2 7
Total administered liabilities 12 5 2 7

Actual vs budget comparison

i. The ($0.4M) variance for Administered appropriation and Grants relates to new unbudgeted funding provided to Health and
Wellbeing Queensland (HWQ) this financial year.
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Note 26. Reconciliation of payments from Consolidated Fund to administered revenue

2023 2022

$'000 $'000

Budgeted appropriation 71,129 77,212
Unforeseen expenditure 406 (5,831)
Administered revenue recognised in Note 25 71,535 71,381

Note 27. Activities and other events

There were no other material events after the reporting date of 30 June 2023 that have a bearing on the Department's
operations, the results of those operations or these financial statements.

The Department’s financial statements are expected to be impacted by the COVID-19 programs beyond 30 June 2023, although
the actual impacts cannot be reliably estimated at the reporting date.



Department of Health

Management Certificate
For the year ended 30 June 2023

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to section 62(1) of the Financial Accountability Act
2009 (the Act), relevant sections of the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2019 and other prescribed
requirements. In accordance with section 62(1)(b) of the Act, we certify that in our opinion:

a) the prescribed requirements for establishing and keeping the accounts have heen complied with, in all material
respects and;

b)  the statements have been drawn up to present a true and fair view, in accordance with prescribed accounting
standards, of the transactions of the Department of Health (the Department) for the financial year ended 30 June
2023 and of the financial position of the Department at the end of that year; and

The Director-General, as the Accountable Officer of the Department, acknowledges responsihility under s.7 and s.11 of the
Financial and Performance Management Standard 2019 for the establishment and maintenance, in all material respects, of an
appropriate and effective system of internal contrals and risk management processes with respect to financial reporting
throughout the reporting period.

-_—

(AN

Michael Walsh - Acting Director-General Luan Sadikaj CPA - Chief Finance Officer
Department of Health Department of Health
Date 15/ 0812023 Dates?S] & /2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Accountable Officer of the Department of Health

Report on the audit of the financial report

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial report of the Department of Health.
In my opinion, the financial report:

a) gives a true and fair view of the department's financial position as at 30 June 2023, and
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended

b) complies with the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the Financial and Performance
Management Standard 2019 and Australian Accounting Standards.

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position and statement of assets
and liabilities by major departmental services as at 30 June 2023, the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash
flows and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income by major departmental
services for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements including material
accounting policy information, and the management certificate.

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General Auditing Standards, which
incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section
of my report.

| am independent of the department in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’'s APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in
Australia. | have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code
and the Auditor-General Auditing Standards.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Responsibilities of the department for the financial report

The Accountable Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the Financial and
Performance Management Standard 2019 and Australian Accounting Standards, and for
such internal control as the Accountable Officer determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

The Accountable Officer is also responsible for assessing the department's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless it is intended to abolish the department or to
otherwise cease operations.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

a Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. This is not done for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the department's internal controls, but
allows me to express an opinion on compliance with prescribed requirements.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of material accounting policy information used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
department.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the department's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
department's ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my
opinion. | base my conclusions on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the department to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the Accountable Officer regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that | identify during my audit.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Statement

In accordance with s.40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009, for the year ended 30 June 2023:
a) |received all the information and explanations | required.

b) | consider that, the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and
keeping of accounts were complied with in all material respects.

Prescribed requirements scope

The prescribed requirements for the establishment and keeping of accounts are contained in
the Financial Accountability Act 2009, any other Act and the Financial and Performance
Management Standard 2019. The applicable requirements include those for keeping financial
records that correctly record and explain the department’s transactions and account
balances to enable the preparation of a true and fair financial report.

’TS D @%_QQ 28 August 2023

Brendan Worrall Queensland Audit Office
Auditor-General Brisbane



AMNMUAL REFORT 2022-23
Department of Health
wwenw health_gld.gov_au

Annual Report 2022-23 — Department of Health





